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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss, including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
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performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(®)

©

(d

(®

()

e

(b

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph (i)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule (11)(g);

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this
report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the
paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g); and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;
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1v.

Vi.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company; and

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software.

Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the relevant prior year has not been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Shankar Srinivasan

Partner

Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 25213271BMISUJ5179

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: August 26, 2025
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(@)

(iD)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular program of verification, which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the Property, plant and equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on
such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of
current assets of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks
are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. The Company do not have sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the year
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) to (f) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) to (f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made thereunder,
to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act, for the products/services of the Company.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According
to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) and (f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Act in respect of the
preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year. The funds raised, have been used
for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in
Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Read with note 40 of the accompanying financial statements, the transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company is not required to have an internal audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the
Act. Therefore, the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) There are two registered Core Investment Companies (CICs) as a part of the Group as defined under
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs. 1,158 lakhs. In the
immediately preceding financial year, the Company had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 584 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Act in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

2B

per-Shankar Srinivasan

Partner

Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 25213271BMISUJ5179

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: August 26, 2025
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Annexure ‘2’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of Dhaksha
Unmanned Systems Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Dhaksha Unmanned
Systems Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

@]

pﬂ_Shankxf‘SFﬁTGEsan

Partner
Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 25213271BMISUJ5179

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: August 26, 2025



Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PTC128496

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I  ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(2) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,279 1,102
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 171
() Intangible assets 4 100 159
(d) Intangible assets under development 5 2,142 751
(e) Right-of-use assets 6 290 252
() Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets i 97 29
(g) Deferred tax asset (net) 13 1,035 525
(h) Other non-current assets 8 61 220
5,175 3,038
2 Current assets
(a) Inventores 9 6,786 3,486
(b) ['inancial assets
(1) Investments 10 4,464
(1i) Trade receivables 11 532 1,268
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 12 193 132
(iv) Orher financial assets 7 7 16
(c) Other current assets 8 4,249 4,924
16,231 9,826
Total assets 21,406 12,865
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 2 1
(b) Other equity 15 16,295 3,128
Total equity 16,297 3,129
2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Lease liabilities 6 220 197
(b) Provisions 18 21 20
241 217
3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 . 5,150
(ii) Lease liabilities 6 84 56
(it) Trade payables 17
Total outstanding dues of micro and small 0
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,053 432
micro and small enterprses
(iv) Other financial liabilities 17A 110 50
(b) Provisions 18 100 93
(c) Other current liabilities 19 3,521 3,737
4,868 9,519
Total liabilities 5,109 9,736
Total equity and liabilities 21,406 12,865
Corporate information and material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
"0" represents amounts less than Rs. 50,000,
As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Assosiates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limpited » \A{],
igh no. 101049%/E300004 W
n Na¥arajun Srinivasan Same thidénand MN.5"Abhishek

Partner
ICAI Membership no. 213271

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 26, 2025

Director
DIN : 00123338

Place: Chennai
Date: August 26, 2025

Director & CEO
DIN : 09322034

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No: A21523




II1

VII
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Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PT C128496

(Allamounts in Rs. lakhs except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from opertions 20 4,095 4,640
Other income 21 656 21
Total income 4,751 4,661
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 3,676 4,357
Changes in inventodes of finished goods and work-in-progress 22 (629) +37)
Employee benefits expense 23 1,014 672
Finance costs 24 H9 122
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 393 205
Impairment of intangibles under development 3 148 617
Other expenses 26 2,054 1,227
Total Expense 7,105 6,761
Loss before tax (I-IT) (2,354 (2,100}
Tax expense:
(1) Cusrent tax - -
(2) Deferred tax 13 (512) (503)

Income tax expenses/(credit) (512) (503)
Loss for the year (III-IV) (1,842) (1,597)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(i) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability /asset 17 (1)

(1) [ncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss O] 0
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss), net of tax 13 0)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (V + VI) (1,829) (1,598)
Eamings per share
Basic (310 per share), computed on the basis of profit for the yeac 27 (12,311) (12,493)
Diluted (210 per share), computed on the basis of profit for the year (12,311) (12,307)

Corponte information and material accounting policies
The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
"0)" represents amounts less than Rs. 50,000.

(S

As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Assosiates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regst nn. 101049W/E300004

ICAI Membership no. 213271

Place : Hyderabad
Darte: August 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pgivate Limited

Dhaksha U: .xnl

L

Natarajan Srinivasan

N.S. Abhishek
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No: A21523

Director & CEO
DIN : 0932203+

Director
DIN: 00123338

Place : Chennai
Date: August 26, 2025




Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PT C128496

(Al amonnts in Rs. lakhs except for share data or as otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Operating activities
Loss before tax (2,354) (2,100)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows :
Depreciation and amortization expense 393 205
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment . 192
Impairment of intangibles under development 148 617
Impairment allowance recognised for doubtful trade and other recuivables 117 64
Provision for employee benefits 13 13
Provision for warranties 12 86
Finance costs 449 122
Fair value gain on investment at fair value through profit and loss account (net) (292 @A)
Interest income (230) (10)

(1,744) (814)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 619 (1,199)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (3,300 (2,117)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (59) 34)
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets 675 (4,408)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 619 272
Inctrease/(Decrease) in Other liabilities (156) 3,485

(3,346) (4,815)
Income tax paid - (10)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (3,346) (4,825)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment's and other intangible assets (1,975) (1,700)
including Intangibles under development, capital advances and CWTP
Purchase of current investrnents (net) (4,173) .
Interest received 230 10
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (5,918) (1,690)
Financing activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings (net) (5,150) 4,662
Interest and other borrowing cost (419) (104)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 14,998 2,000
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (104) (57)
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 9,325 6,500
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 61 (15)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 132 146
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12) 193 132
Note:
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Reconciliation of Short term borrowings:
Opening balance 5,150 488
Cash flow changes in short-term borrowings (net) (5,150) 4,662
Closing balance - 5,150

The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
"0" represents amounts less than Rs. 50,000

As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Assosiates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fiem Regstaation no. 10149 /E300004

ICAI Membership no. 213271

Place : Hyderabad
Date: August 26, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited

I JKGEQK

A
S Sachfd d

Dicector
DIN: 00123338

Place : Chennai
Date: August 26, 2025

Director & CEO
DIN : 09322034

.S. Abhishek
Company Secretary
ICST Membership No: A21323




Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PTC128496

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs except for share data or as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital (Refer note 14)

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up Nl;hm::: . amennt
At 01 April 2023 10,562 1
Issue of equity share capital 1,189 0
Issue of equity share capital pursuant to conversion of CCPS 1,331 0
At 31 March 2024 13,082 1
Issue of equity share capital 2,180 1
At 31 March 2025 15,262 2
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus Total
Particulars Equity Component of . Retained
convertible preference  Securities premium .
eamnings
shares
As at 01 April 2023 2,048 695 (16) 2,726
Loss for the year - - (1,597) (1,597
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the periond - - (0) )]
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (1,397) (1,591)
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 1,999 - 1,999
Conversion of compulsorily convertible preference shares (2,048) 2,048 -
At 31 March 2024 - 4,742 (1,613) 3,128
Loss for the year - - (1,842) (1,842)
Other comprehensive income for the peniod - - 13 13
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (1,829) (1,529)
Proceeds from issue of equity share capual 14,997 - 14,997
At 31 March 2025 - 19,739 (3,442) 16,295
The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
"0" tepresents amounts less than Rs. 50,000.
As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Assosiates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited -
Firm Regisgativh no. 101049%/E300004 \éwb\f_\!(l—
per Shankar Sciné h amruiﬁ-inivasan SameeT xthigfinand  N.5. Abhishek
Py Director Director & CEO Company Secretary
ICAI Membership no. 213271 DIN: 00123338 DIN : 09322034 ICSI Membership No: A21523

Place : Hyderabad o
Date: August 26, 2025 en | Date: August 26, 2025
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Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PTC128496

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Corporate information:

Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited ("the Company") (CIN U35900TIN2019PTC128496) is 2 deemed public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated on April 02, 2019 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The address of its registered office is Plot No. 253, Sidco N.P)
Ambattur Industrial Estate, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600098

The Company is principally engaged in the business of developing and manufacturing of Unmanned Aeial Vehicle Drones, Remote Pilot Training Services
and services related to agriculture etc. The financial statements were approved by board of directors on August 26, 2025.

Material accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with [ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies
Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statement.

The financial statements have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of
repotting period, and or accrual basis
The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated."0"

represents amounts less than Rs. 50,000.
The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period

Summary of material accounting policies

Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it
1.Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in notmal operating cycle

2.Held primarily for the purpose of trading

3.Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, ot

4 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is treated as current when:

1.Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

2.1t is held prmarily for the purpose of trading

3.1t is duc to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, ot

4 There is no unconditional dght to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting pesiod

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification

The Company classifies all the other liabilities as non - current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (ie., the “functional cutrency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (%), the national currency of India, which is the functional
currency of the Company and rounded to the nearest Lakhs.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date
of transactions, The date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (part
of it) is the date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from payment or receipt of advance
consideration, Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and lizbilities are cestated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not translated.

Fair value measurement

Foreign currency transactions are recorded ac exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date
of transactions. The date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (part
of it) is the date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability adsing from payment or receipt of advance
consideration. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities 2re restated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not translated

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measuremnents are categorized into Level 1, 2, ot 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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Dhaksha Un d Sy Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PTC128496

(Allamounts in Rs. lakhs except for share data ot as otherwise stated)

1) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics that the entity can access at the measurement date;
1) Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are obsecvable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

ui) Level 3 inputs ate unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict transfer of control of promised goods and services to customers upon the satisfaction of performance obligation under the
contract in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. Consideration
includes goods and secvices contributed by the customer as non-cash consideration over which the company has control

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control or substantial risks and rewards of ownersship are transferred to the buyer under the terms of the
contrmct.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct services to a
customer as specified in the contract excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties for example taxes and duties collected in behalf of the
government). Consideration is geaerally due upon satisfaction of pecformance obligations and receivable is recognised eam it becomes unconditional.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and claims ,if any, as specified in the contract with the
puace, J s P!

customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers

The Company recognises tevenue at a point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied, 1.e. when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular
pany gn P P gal 4 yung the p

pecformance obligation are transferred to the customer, Customers obtain control of the good when the goods are delivered at the agreed point of delivery

where generally is the premises of customer,

Rendering of services

The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contact identification of distinct
pany p P g

performance obligations to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables and allocation of

transaction price to these distinct performance obligations involves significant judgment.

Rendering of services includes Maintenance secvices, trining services and other services. The Company recognises revenue over 2 period of time when the
petformance obligation is satisfied.

Warranty

The Company provides warrnties for general repairs of defects as per tecms of the contract with ultimare customers. These warmaties are considered as
assurance type wamanties and are accounted for under Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Variable consideration
The Companies estimate the amount of consideration to which the Company will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods and services
to a customer if the consideration promised in 2 contract includes a vadable amount ,

An amount of consideration can vary because of discounts, refunds, credits, price concéssions, incentives erformance bonuses or other similar items. The
3 5 P + W
promised consideration can also vary if Company's entitlement to the consideration is contingent on the ogcurrence or non-occurrence of a future event.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (ie., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is duc)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods oc services to customer for which the Company has received consideration for an amount of
consideration is due from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the company transfers goods or services to the customer a contract
liability is realised when the payment is made.

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other Income

Iaterest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective intecest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futuce cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Curtent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amouat ace those that are enacted oc substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax
treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PTC128496

(All amounts in Rs, lakhs except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are genenlly recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
anses from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that futute taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Defecred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peciod in which the liability 1s settled or the asset realized,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod.

2.8 Property plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes purchase price, attributable expenditure incurred in bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and cost of borrowing till the
date asset is ready for its intended use or sale in the case of assets involving material investment and substantal period of time.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carmed at cost, less any recognized impairment loss
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the stmight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 2013 Act except in tespect of following
categories of assets in whose case the life of certain assets has been assessed based on technical advice taking into account the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement, maintenance support etc.

Category of asset Estimated useful life (in years)

Lease hold improvements Lower of useful life of the leasehold
improvement or the lease term

Plant and Machinery- Others 5-15

Office Equipment 5

Computers 3

Furaiture & Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

The estimated useful lives, tesidual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Assets individually costing ¥ 5,000 and below are depreciated over a period of one year. Land is not
depreciated

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arsing on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference berween
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Intangible assets
Intangibles primarily comprise of software's and product development. Intangible assets acquited separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following irutial recognition, intangible assets are carded at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit oc loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life on a straight line basis and assessed for impairment whenever thece is an mndication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation pedod ot method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (ie., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

Useful life estimated by Company is as under

Software- G years , New product development - 3 years

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can
demonstrate:

1.The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

2.Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

3.How the asset will generate future economic benefits

4.The availability of resources to complete the asset

5.The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumnulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the penod of
expected future benefit, Amortisation expense is recognised in the statemnent of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms pact of carrying value of
another asset. Duning the period of development, the asset is tested for impaimment annually.
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2.10 Impairment
Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset/cash generating unit may be impaired. If any indication exists the
Company estimates the recovemable amount of such assets and if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, impairment is recognized. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the Fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that previously recognized impairment loss no longer exists
or may have decreased such reversal of impaimment loss 1s recognized in the profit or loss

Company as a lessee

The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract 1s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the aght to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease hability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the undedying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the stmight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. In addirion,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measucements of the lease liability.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impaimment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under tesidual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term teflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or 2 rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventones) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease labilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is 2 modification, a change in
the lease term, 2 change in the lease payments (e.g, changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such leasc
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the undeclying asset.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

2.12 Inventories
Inventories consist of raw matenals, stores and spares, work-in-progress jprogress, traded goods & packing materials and finished goods and are measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price (including subsidy income, where applicable) of
inventonies less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition ace accounted as follows:
Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in brnging the inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is
determined using weighted average cost methods.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materals and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the
nomnal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined using weighted average cost methods.

Traded Goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in brnging the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 1s
determined on monthly moving weighted average cost.

2.13 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets
Provisions
Provisions are recognized only when there is 2 present obligation as a result of past events and when a reasonable estimate of the amount of obligation can
be made. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for (1) possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company
o (if) present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that 2n outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets ate neither tecognized nor disclosed in the financial smtements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
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2.14 Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable
to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s Gratuity scheme for 1ts employees is a defined benefit retirement plan. The Lability as at the Balance Shect date is provided for using the
projected unit credit method, with actuanal valuations being carried out as at the end of the year.

Defined benefit costs are categonized as follows:

* service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);

* net interest expense or income; and

* remeasurement

The Company presents the ficst two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains
and losses are accounted for as past service costs. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit kability or asset

Remeasurement, comprising actuanial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding
net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income 1s reflected immedrately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss

Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits including accumulated compensated absences as at the Balance Sheet date are recognised as an expense as per Company’s
schemes based on expected obligation on an undiscounted basis.

2.15 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabikty or equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI),
and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient, the Company mnitially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, tmnsaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer note 2.5

In ocder for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of pnancipal and interest (SPPI)” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measuced at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within 2 business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling.

Puirchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Sub.

quent

For pucposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categones:

* Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
* Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
+ Fmancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortsed cost (debt instruments)

A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured ar amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral parct of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

A “financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

* The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
* The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. For debt instruments, at fair
value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in
the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes ate recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI
when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financtal Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification 1s determined
on an instrument-by-instrumnent basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss
when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCL. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCl ate not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit oc loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value cecognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Company’s balance sheet) when:

* The nights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows 1 full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ armngement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through armngement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the nisks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the nsks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the tmnsferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability ace measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the onginal carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

I i of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the onginal effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or

other credit enhancements that are integrl to the contractual terms.

ECLs ate recognised in two stages. For credit exposutes for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (2 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a Joss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that 1s based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the trade receivables and the economic environment

. Financial liabilities
Initial o and oy
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as approprmate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

ubsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categones:
* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
* Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial habilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities ate classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This categoty also includes
derivative financial instcuments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVIPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit nsk are recognized
in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair valie of such liability ate recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 2cquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is tecognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.16 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount s reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
nght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, in bank and demand deposits with banks and with financial institutions. The Company considers all highly liquid financial
instruments, which are readily convertible into cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.
Such cash equivalents are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value

2.18 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting preference
dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the peniod.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

2.19 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporung period that may

have a significant nsk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

)

A

Items requiring sig

ption and esti uncertainty

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of praperty, plant and equipmeat at the end of each reporting|
pedod. During the current year, there has been no change in life considered for the assets.

Provision for doubtful receivables

The Company makes provision for doubtful recervables based on 2 provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss expenence and adjusted for current estimates.

Estimation of net realisable value of
mnventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In estimating the net realisable value of
inventones, the Company makes an estimate of future selling prices and costs necessary ta make the sale.

Impairment of intangible asset under
development and intangible assets

The Company capitalises intangble asset under development for projects in accordance with the accounting|
policy. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, Management makes assumptions regarding the expected
future cash generanon of the project, discount rates 1o be apphied and the expected penod of benefits

220 Events after the reporting period
If the Company receives information after
reporting period, it will assess whether the

the reporting penod, but prior to the date of approved for issue, about conditions that existed at the end of the
information affects the amounts that it recognises in its separate financial statements. The Company will adjust

the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period and update the disclosures that relate to those

conditions in light of the new information.

For non-adjusting events after the reporting peniod, the Company will not change the amounts recognised in its

separate financial statements but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an

estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

2.21 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified the following standards or amendments to the existing

standards :-
Ind As 117 — Insurance Contracts
Ind As 116 — Sale and leaseback

The amendments of the above standard are not applicable to the Company
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Plant and Office Furniture and n
. ) . Computers Vehicles Total
improvements  machinery  equipment fixtures
Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at 01 April 2023 26 340 25 20 24 20 455
Additions 462 385 48 41 36 - 972
Disposals/adjustments - 237 ) 1 - - 240
Balance as at 31 March 2024 488 488 71 60 60 20 1,187
Additions 90 196 2 48 5 70 411
Disposals/adjustments - - - - . - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 578 684 73 108 65 90 1,598
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2023 3 48 2 1 1 0 55
Depreciation charge for the year 13 42 6 12 3 3 79
Disposal during the year - 47 1 1. 49
Balance as at 31 March 2024 16 43 7 12 4 3 85
Depreciation charge for the year 100 79 15 25 6 9 234
Disposal during the year . . . . - £
Balance as at 31 March 2025 16 122 22 37 10 12 319
Net book value
At 31 March 2025 462 562 51 It 55 78 1,279
At 31 March 2024 472 445 64 48 56 17 1,102
Capital work in progress (CWIP) Movement Schedule
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening Balance .
Add: Additions during the year 582
Less: Capitalizations during the year 411
Closmng Balance 171 -
Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Lxs;::n ! 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 171 = - - 171
Total 171 - - - 171

&1 CHARTERED

o \ ACCOURTANTS
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4. Intangible assets

New Product

Software Total
Development
Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at 01 April 2023 - - -
Additions 148 88 236
Disposals/adjustments - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 148 88 236
Additions - 14 14
Disposals/adjustments . - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 148 102 250
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 01 April 2023 - -
Amortisation 60 18 i
Disposals/adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 60 18 17
Amortisation 42 30 12
Disposals/adjustments - . -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 102 48 149
Net book value
At 31 March 2025 46 54 100
At 31 March 2024 88 71 159
5. Intangible asset under development
New Product Total
Development
Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at 01 April 2023 1,108 1,108
Additions 408 408
Less: Capitalization 148 148
I ess: Impairment* 617 617
Balance at 31 March 2024 751 751
Additions 1,539 1,539
Less: Capitalization . -
Less: Impairment® 148 148
Balance at 31 March 2025 2,142 2,142

*The company has impaired Intangible Assets Under Development due to the unfeasibility of certain projects from which company does not expect any future economic

benefuts.

Intangible Asset under Development (IAUD) Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2025
Amount of JAUD for the period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years
year
Projects in progress 1,539 407 196 - 2,142
1,539 407 196 - 2,142
As at 31 March 2024
Amount of IAUD for the period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 yeacs
year
Projects in progress 407 344 - : 751
407 344 - - 751
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6. Right-of-use asset

The Company has lease contracts for office and factories premises with a lease term of 2 to 6 Years.

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Carrying amounts of:
Office and factory premises

290 252

Total

290 252

Details of Right-of-use asset

Office and factory premises

Gross carrying value

Balance as at 01 April 2023 98
Additions 226
Disposals/adjustments -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 324
Additions 125
Disposals/adjustments -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 449
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2023 23
Amortisation 49
Disposal/adjustments -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 72
Amortisation 87
Disposal/adjustments -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 159
Carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2025 290
Balance as at 31 March 2024 252
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the peniod:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
AtAprtl 253 78
Additions 125 214
Accretion of Interest (Refer note 24) 30 18
Payments 104 57
Ac¢March 31 304 253
Curreent 84 56
Non Current 220 197
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%, with maturity between 2026-2028.
The following are the amounts recopnised in profit or loss:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 87 49
Interest expense on lease lmbilities 30 18
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 58 14
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 175 81
Contrmactual maturities of lease habilities on an undiscounted basis
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within five years 365 309
More than five years - -
Total 365 309
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7. Other financial assets

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Financial Instruments at amortised cost
Sccunty deposits 73 7 29 16
Other deposit 24 - - -
97 7 29 16
8. Other assets
As al As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Capital Advance 61 - 220 -
Advances to suppliers - 1,026 - 2,844
Balance with statutory authonties - 2,353 - 1,283
Income tax assets - 36 - 13
Prepaid expenses - 834 - 784
Total 61 4,249 220 4,924
9. Inventories (at the lower of cost and net realisable value)
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Raw matenals 5,113 2441
Work in progress 1,222 -
Finithed goods 451 1,044
Total inventories 6,786 3,486
10. Current investments
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unqoted investment at FVTPL
Investments in Unquoted Mutual Funds 4464
4,464 -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 4,464 -
Aggregate amount of impairement in the value of investments &
11. Trade receivables
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade Receivables
Secured, considered good E
Unsecured, considered good 537 1,275
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 127 9
664 1284
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good 5 6
Trade Recetvables - credit impaired 127 9
132 15
‘Total trade receivables 532 1,268

The credit period on sales of goods varies with business segments/markets and generally ranges between 30 to 90 days.
Before accepting any new customer, the Company has a credit evaluation system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and to define credit limits fot the customer.

Credit limits attnbuted to customers are reviewed on an annual basis.

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses the expected credit loss (""ECL™) model for measurement and recognition of impaicment loss on its trade receivables.
For this purpose, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount for trade receivables. The provision matnx takes into account external
and internal credit risk factors and historical data of credit losses from various customers adjusted for forward looking estimates. Accordingly, the Company creates provision
for past due receivables beyond 180 days rangmg between 25%-100% after reckoning the underlying collaterals. Besisdes, based on the expected credit loss model the

Company also provides upto 0.5% for receivables less than 180 days.
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1. Ageing of trade receivables as at 31 March 2025

(a) Undisputed trade receivables

Particulars Considered good  Considered doubtful

Not due 7

Less than 6 months 421 127

6 months - 1 year 103 -

1-2 years 6 -

2-3 years -

More than 3 years - -
537 127

(b) Disputed trade receivables

There are no disputed trade receivables

(c) Total trade receivables (at+b)

Considered good 537

Trade teceivables - credit impaired 132

Less: Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) (132)

537

2. Ageing of trade receivables as at 31 March 2024

(a) Undisputed trade receivables

Particulars Considered good  Considered doubtful
Not due s
Less than 6 moaths 1,246
6 moaths - 1 year 9 -
1-2 years 20 9
2-3 years
More than 3 vears - -

1,275 9
(b) Disputed trade receivables
There are no disputed trade receivables
(c) Total trade receivables (a+b)
Considered good 1,275
Trade receivables - credit impaired 15
Less: lmpaimment Allowance (allowanec for bad and doubtful debts) s)

1,275
3. Movement in the allowance of doubtful receivables
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 15 19
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) on receivables (net) 117 ()]
Balance at the end of the year 132 15
12. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balances with banks:
On current accounts 187 102
Deposits with orginal matunty of less than three months 6 29
Total 193 132
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13. Income tax

a. Deferred tax liabilities net As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred tax habihnes (85) (63)
Deferred tax assets 1,120 588

1,035 525

Opening Recognised in Recognised in other .
2024-25 Balance as on 01 Proﬁtga:d Loss comprehensive Cl(;sll:lg;::::;;;: on
April 2024 Afe income )
Deferred tax liabilities/ (asset) in relation to:
Property plant and equipment 34 18 - 51
Right to use asset (63) 10 (53)
Lease liability 64 (13) 51
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and expected credit loss 4 (36) - (32)
Losses carry forward* 437 523 - 960
Others 50 11 4 57
Total 525 512 4 1,035
Opening Recognised in ~ Recognised in other .
2023-24 Balance as on  Profit and Loss comprehensive c'?;:f;::::;;; on
April 01, 2023 Afe income

Deferred tax liabilities/ (asset) in relation to:
Property plant and equipment 3 30 - 34
Right to use asset 20) (44) E (63)
Lease liability 20 43 - 64
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and expected credit loss 14 (10) - 4
Losses carry forward * - 437 = 437
Others 4 46 (0) 50
TFotal 21 503 [()} 525

* Management on review of the financial performance, open customer orders and cash flow projections has recognised deferred tax asset on business losses to the extent the

same can be set off against taxable profits in foreseeable future.

b. Reconciliation of tax exy in the acc ing profit is as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Accounting Loss before tax (2,354 (2,100;
Tax expense at statutory tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2024: 25.17%) (593) (528)
Adjustments:
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit/loss - 3)
Effect of tax rclating to prior years 80 29
Tax exp [ (credit) 1 in the Si of Profit and Loss (512) (503)
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14. Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

Equity share Compulsorily convertible preference
shares ("CCPS")
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At 31 March 2024 100,000 10 10,000 1
At 31 March 2025 100,000 10 10,000 1

Terms/right attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholdets in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distbution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Terms/ rights attached to Compulsorily convertible preference shares (" CCPS")

1. CCPS are non-participating and convertible

2. CCPS carry a preferential right, vis-A-vis equity shares of the Company, with respect to repayment in case of a winding up or repayment of capital,

3. Terms of Conversion:

3.1, CCPS are compulsorily converted to equity shares of the Company () at the option of holder of the CCPS, but no later than the occurrence of a Liquidation Event, or (b)
immediately prior to the expiry of a petiod of 20 (twenty) years from the date of issuance of such CCPS

3.2. Upon conversion of CCPS into equity shares of the Company in the ratio of 1:1, such equity shares shall rank pari passu to all existing equity shares of the Company.
During the previous year, entite CCPS had been converted into equity.

Issued equity capital
A. Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Particulars No. of Shares INR in Rs.
At 01 April 2023 10,562 1
Issued during the year 1,189 0
Issued during the year in pursuance of conversion of CCPS 1,331 0
At 31 March 2024 13,082 1
Issued dunng the year 2,180 1
At 31 March 2025 15,262 2
Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Out of equity and preference shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Coromandel Technology Limited 8,854 6,674
Details of Shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Name of the shareholder
Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Coromandel Technology Limited 8,854 58.01% 6,674 51.02%
Mr. Krishnakumar 3,500 22.93% 3,500 26.75%

Mz M Venkatesan 1,900 12.45% 1,900 14.52%
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Details of shares held by promaters - 31 March 2025

S. No. Promoter Name No. of shares atthe Change during  No. of shares at % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the the year the end of the year the year
year
1 Coromandel Technology 6,674 2,180 8,854 58.01% 1428%
Limited
Details of shares held by promoters - 31 March 2024
S. No. Promoter Name No. of shares atthe Change during  No. of shares at % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the the year the end of the year the year
year
1 Caromandel Technology 6,674 6,674 5L.02% 51.02%
Limited*
*w.e.f from July 31, 2023.
I1. Issued Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
A. CCPS of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Particulars No. of Shares INR in Rs.
At 01 April 2023 1,331 0
Issued dunng the Year (1,331) (V)]
At 31 March 2024 - -
At 31 March 2025 - -
Details of shares held by promoters - As at 31 March 2024
§. No. Promoter Name No. of shares at the Change during  No. of shares at % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the the year the end of the year the year
year
1 Mr. N Ramanathan and B 333 (333) 0.00% -25.02%
15, Other equity
Amount
Securities premium account
At 01 April 2023 695
Add: Issuance of share capital 1,999
Add: Issuance of share capital pursuant to conversion of CCPS 2,048
At 31 March 2024 4,742
Add: Issuance of share capatal 14,997
At 31 March 2025 19,739
Retained earnings
At 01 April 2023 (16)
Add: Other comprehensive loss for the penod ©
Add: Loss for the year (1,597
At 31 March 2024 (1,613)
Add: Other comprehensive loss for the period 13
Add: Loss for the year (1,842)
At 31 March 2025 (3,442)
Compulsorily convertible preference shares
At 01 April 2023 2,048
Less: Conversion of CCPS (2,048)
At 31 March 2024 -
Less: Conversion of CCPS -
At 31 March 2025 -
Other equity
At 31 March 2024 3,128
Ac 31 March 2025 16,295

1) Securities premium cepresents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation of the securities premium is governcd by the Section 52 of

the Act.

i) Retained earnings represents the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes.
gs rep pany S
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16. Short Term Borrowings

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current Borrowings
Loan from Banks (Secured)
Working capital demand loans (Maote 16.1) 5,150
Total - 5,150
Aggregate Secured loans - 5,150
igsregate Unsecured loans = -

16.1 Working capital demand loans (WCDL) availed from HDFC Bank, catry interest ranging between 7.76% to 8.34% p.a. Interest is payable on monthly rest. Tenor of

WCDL was 120 days from the Draw down date.

WCDL was secured by way of:
Cutrent Assets - Ficst Rank Paripassu on stock and book debt of the Company
Movable Fixed Assets - First Rank Paripassu on the movable fixed assets of the Company.
Letter of comfort from CIL - refer note 33.

This loan was repaid during the year.

17. Trade payables
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Others
Dues to micro and small enterprises (Note no. 32) - 0
Dues to other than micro and small enterprises 1,053 432
Total 1,053 432
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
17.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and ace normally settled on 30 to 90 days
Trade Payables ageing schedule:
As at 31 March 2025 o] ling for following period from due date of payment
Total
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 6 months - 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months
() MSME - - . - - .
(@) Others 257 438 356 2 - - 1,053
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues -Others - - - - - -
Total 257 438 356 2 - - 1,053
As at 31 March 2024 O ling for following period from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due L::znth;: 6 6 months - 1 year 12 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(HMSME 0 . . E - 0
(1) Others 59 369 4 . - 432
(ui) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues -Others . - - - - -
Total 59 369 4 - - - 432
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17A. Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Accrued wages and salaries of employees (refer note 39) 110 50
Total 110 50
18. Provisions
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non current
Provision for gratuity 21 20
21 20
Current
Provision for warranty 98 86
Provision for gratuity 2 7
100 93
The Company recocds provisions towards warranty for products wherein the obligation is for one year. Accordingly the provision has been recognised on the basis of
manzgements expectations of warmnty clhims on such product
Refer note 28 for denails of gratuity obligation
Movements in provision for warranty As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
At the commencement of the year 86 -
Add : Provision made dunng the year 208 86
Less : utilisation during the year (195) -
At the end of the year 98 86
19. Other current liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory dues 21 40
Contract Labilities (Advances from customers refer note 31) 3,500 3,584
Other payables - 113
Total 3,521 3,737
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20. Revenue from

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers (Note 31) 4,095 4,634
Other operating revenue = 6
Total 4,095 4,640

21.0ther income

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income 230 8
Foreign exchange gain 1 -
Fair value gain on investment at fair value through profit and loss account (net) 292 2
Insurance claim 111 -
Other income 22 11
Total 656 21
22, Changes in i ies of finished goods and work-in-progress

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance
Work in progress - 93
Fintshed goods 1,044 515
Total opening balance 1,044 608
Closing balance
Work in progress 1,222 -
Finished goods 451 1,044
Total closing balance 1,673 1,044
Changes in inventory
Work-in-progress (1,222 93
Finished poods 593 (330)
Changes in i ies of finished goods and work-in-progress (629) (437)
23. Employee benefi I

For the year ended For the year ended

31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 834 585
Contribution to provident fund 37 21
Gratuity expenses (Note 28) 13 13
Staff welfare expenses 130 52

1,014 672
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24. Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on debt and borrowings 410 104
Interest on lease liabilities 30 18
Other borrowing cost 9 -
Total 449 122
25. Depreciation and amortization expense

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on property plant and equipment 234 79
Amortisation of intangible assets 72 77
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 87 49
Total 393 205

26. Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Power and fuel 35 11
Freight and forwarding charges 96 69
Rates and taxes 11 11
Insurance 111 14
Repairs and maintenance

Building 14 25

Plant and Machinery 16 -

Others 253 20
Advertising and sales promotion 31 114
Travelling and conveyance 324 251
Professional and technical consultancy fees 429 212
Payment to auditor (Note No. 26(a)) 16 16
Panting and Stationery 84 20
Impairment allowance recognised for doubtful trade and other receivables 117 O]
Provision for warranties 208 86
Security expenses 35 9
Consumption of stores and spares 105 30
Rent 58 14
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment (net) - 192
Royalty expenses 35 108
Miscellancous expenses 16 31

2,054 1,227

26(a). Payment to Auditor

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
As Auditor
Audit Fee 15 15
OPE 1 1
Tax Audit - -
16 16
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27. Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts ace calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares

ourtstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference
shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shaces that would be issued on

conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loss for the Year (1,842) (1,597)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 14,963 12,785
Effect of dilution:

Convertthle preference shaces - 193
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 14,963 12,978
The following table shows computation of basic and diluted EPS

Basic, computed based on profit for the year (12,311) (12,493)
Diluted, computed based on profit for the year (12,311) (12,307)

28. Employee benefit obligation
(a) Disclosures related to defined benefit plan:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary
last drawn for each completed year of service in line with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, payable at the time of separation or reticernent, whichever is eadier. The

scheme is unfunded

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuation

being carried out at the balance sheet date

I. Defined benefit obligation
(i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 27 -
Current service cost 11 13
Interest cost on benefit obligation 2
Benefits paid -
Effects of changes in demographic assumptions 20 -
Effects of changes in finacial assumption 2 -
Effects of changes in Experience adjustments 0 0
Transfer In - 14
Closing defined benefit obligation 23 27
(ii) Reconciliation of net defined benefit asset/(liability):

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 23 27
Faic value of plan assets - -
Plan liability 23 27
II. Exp ised in the of profit and loss under employee benefit expense

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current service cost 11 13
Interest cost on benefit obligation 2 -
Net benefit expense 13 13
IIL R guised in of other compreh
Net actuarial (gun)/ loss recopnized in the year (N 1
(Peafin)/ Loss recomised m statement of other comprehensive mcome {in 1
V. A gnised in the bal sheet:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Defined benefit obligation 23 27
Faar value of plan assets - .
Closing balance 23 27
V. Experience adjustment

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
On plan liabilities loss (%)) 1
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VL. The principal ptions used in de ining gratuity abligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Discount rate G.64% 6.99%
Increase in compensation cost 9% Y%
Attrition rate 20% 5%
Estirnated rate of return on plan assets 0% 0%
Momality rare during employment 100% of IALM 12-14 100% of TALM 12-14
Notes :

) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on Govemment Securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations

(i) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply
and demand in the employment market.

VII. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

{ /fd in defined benefit obligation
Particulars Sensitivity level As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Discount rate 1% increase 1) 3
1% decrease 1 3
Salary escalation rate 1% increase 1 3
1% decrease 1) [6))
Attrition rate 1% increase ) (6]
1% decrease 1 1

VIIL The following pay-outs are expected in future years (valued on undiscounted basis):

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
1st year 2 7
2nd year 1 0
3rd Year 4 ]
4th year 3 2
5th Year 4 1
12 ]

6th to 10 years

29. C i and Contingent liabilities
The Company has no outstanding Commitments and Contingent liabilities

30. Segment reporting :

Business Segment: The Company has considered business segment as primary segment for disclosure. The Company’s operations predominantly consist of
developing and manufacturing of Unmanned Aerial Vehicle Drones, Remote Pilot Training Services and services related to agriculture etc., which in the contest of
I[nd AS 108 “Operating Seg " is considered as the only business segment.

-3

31. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 “R from with i
(a) Disaggregation of revenue:

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Type of goods or service
Sale of drones and drones accessones 3,763 4,230
Rendening of seevices 232 404
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,095 4,6H
India 4,095 4,634
Outside India - -
Total from ¢ with 4,095 4,634
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred ata point in time 3,763 4,230
Services transferred over time 332 404
Total from with 4,095 4,634

(b) Contract balances
Opening and closing of contract balinces

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

o Trade receivables 332 1,268
(0] Contract assets - .
(in) Contract liabilities 3,500 3,584

Trade teceivables ate non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. As at 31 March 2025, Rs. 132 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 15 lakhs) is the
closing provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver products and to render training services. The outstanding balances of contract liabilities increased from
previous years due to the continuous increase in the Company’s customer base




Dhaksha Unmanned Systems Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN : U35900TN2019PTC128496

{All amounts in Rs. lakhs except for share data or as otherwise stated)

OR iling the of gnised in the of profit and loss with the contracted price and Right of retum assets and refund
liabilities

There is no difference in the contract price negotiated and the revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the current year. There is no revenue
recognised in the current year from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods. There are no tight to return assets and refund liabilities.

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year recognised as tevenue in the curcent year of Rs. 84 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 275 lakhs)
(d) Performance obligation

Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Sale of Drones and droues accessories

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the equipment and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

Sale of service

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and pay is g lly due upon completion of service and acceptance of the customer
32. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop (MSMED) Act,2006:
S.No Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
@ The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as - 0

at the end of the accounting year Prindpal amount due to micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above -
®) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act

2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed

day during each accounting yeat

«©) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day durng the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

d The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ar the end of each accounting year

(e The amount of fucther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the
MSMED Act, 2006
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33. Related party disclosures:
A. Name of related parties of the ¢

i

Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship

EID Pacer Limited Ultimate Holding Company (W.e.f from Julv 31, 202%)
Coromandel Inteenational Limited Stepup Holding Company (W.e.f from July 31, 2023)
Coromandel Technologies Limited [mmediate Holding Company (W'.e.f from July 31, 2023)

Hari Overseas Entity in which dicector / Key Managenial personuel is interested
Etails Labs Entity in which director / Key Managerial personnel is interested
Magnipower Technology Private Limited {formerly known Entity in which dicector / Key Managerial personnel is interested

as Magnipower Technology LLP)

Mr, Ramanathan N Director {up to August 21, 2025)

Mr. Sameer Sachidanand Whole time Director (w.e.f November 28, 2024)
Mrs, Jayashree Satagopan Director {up to june 16, 2025)

Me. Satya Narayan Nayak Company Secretary {up to December 17, 2024)
Mr. N.S. Abhishek Company Secretary (wv.e.f May 16, 2025)

Mr. Natarajan Srinivasan Director (w.e.f August 20, 2025)

Me. Madhab Adhikari Director (w.e.f August 26, 2025)

M. Suresh Subramanian Director (w.c.f August 20, 2025)

AMr. B Raghavendra Rao Director (w.e.f August 20, 2025)

B. Disclosure of transaction between the company and related parties

. For the year ended For the year ended
N
ame TSRt ns_caos 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Mr. Ramanathan N Remuneration 30 69
Mr. Sameer Sachidanand Remuneration 33 -
Mr. Ramanathan N Expenses Reimbursement 1 20
Ar. Sameer Sachidanand Expenses Reimbursement 8 N
Mt Ramanathan N Loans taken from related party 32
Mr. Ramanathan N Loan repaid to related party - (46)
Magnipower Technology Private 1410 2,060
Limited (formerly known as Purchase of Goods
Magnipower Technology LLP)
Etails Labs Other Expenses = 30
Coromandel Technologies Limited Equity Share Capiul (including securities premium) 15,000
Coromandel International Limited Sale of Goods and Services 1,825 L770
Expenses teimbursed 191 -
Letter of comfort for loan faciliy# 10,000 10,000
Other Expenses . 69
Rent paid 2 2
Advances paid 30 243
EID Pacry Limited Sale of Goods and Services 2
C. Discl of ding balances
Name As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Magnipower Technology Private Limited
Advances to suppliers 467 606
Coromandel International Limited
Trade Payables 237 63
Contract liabilities (Advances from customers) 63 243

# During the year Coromandel International Limited has issued an additional letter of comfort to the lenders of the Company which states that CIL shall ensure the
Company repays debts under the above facility. The total Letter of Comfort as on 31 March 2025 is 20,000 Lakhs (31 March 2024 : ¥ 10,000 Lakhs). There was no
outstanding under the facility as at 31 March 2025,

34. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other retained earnings atwibutable to the equity holders. The
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Short term borrowings - 3,150
Lease liabilities 304 253
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1193) (132)
Net Debt 111 5,271
Total equity 16,297 3,129
Capital and net debt 16,408 8,400
Geaning ratio 0.68% 62.75%
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35 Ratio and its components

a1, Ratios
Se. no. Ratio For the year ended | For the year ended Variance Rczson. for variance
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 |exceeding 25%
1 Current ratio 3.33| 1.03| 223% Note 1
2 Trade receivable tumover ratio (days) 4.55 6.62 -31% Note 2
3 Inventory tumover ratio (days) 0.59] 1.62 -63% Note 3
4 Debt-Equity ratio NA 1.73] 100% Note 4
5 Debt Service coverage ratio (3.27) {7.98} -59% Note 4
6 Return on equity ratio -18.97% -54.58%| -65% Note 5
7 Trade payable turnover ratio 8.07 9.91 -19% NA
8 Net capital turnover ratio 0.36 15.06 -98% Note 6
9 Net prafit ratio -44.98%| -34.27%| 31% Note 7
10 Return on capitai employed -11.63% -23.70%)| -51% Note 8
11 Return on [nvestment NA NA NA NA

Note 1 Increase in current ratio is on account of increase in current assets and decrease in current liabilities on account of repayment of borrowings.
Note 2 Decrease is on account of decrease in the revenue from operations during the curcent year.

Note 3 Increase is on account of decrease in cost of materials consumed with cocresponding incrase in average inventory.

Note 4 Decrease is on account of repayment of borrowings durng the current year.

Note 5 The ceasons for the variance in the ratio is on account of equity infusion during the current yeac.

Note 6 The decrease is on account increase in working capital during the current year.

Note 7 The vadance in net profit ratio is on account decrease in revenue and increase in loss during the current year.

Note 8 The varance is on account of increase in capital employed during the current year.

b. Componcnis of ratio
Ratio Formula

Current assets/Cucrent liabilities H
Revenue from contracts with customers /Average receivables

Current ratio

Trade receivable turnover ratio (days)
[nventory turnover ratio (days)

(Cost of materials consumed, Purchases of stock-in-trade, Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process
and stock-in-trade)/ Average Inventories

Debt-Equity ratio
Debt Service coverage rato

(Long-term and Short-term bocrowings including Current maturities of long-term borrowings)/ (Total equity)

(Profit after tax and before Depreciation and Amortisation Expense, Finance costs excluding lease interest,
exceptional Items)/(Finance costs excluding lease interest + Principal repayment of long term borcowings)

Retutn on equity ratio
Trade payible tuenover ratio
Net capital turnover ratio
Net profit ratio

Retumn on capital employed
|Retum on Investment

Net Profit after tax / Average share-holdecs equity

Purchases including other espenses/ Average Trade payables * Number of days
Net sales / Working cipital

Profit after tax/ Revenue from contracts with customers

Earmnings before Interest and taxes / Capital employed

Interest Income/ Average Investment in Inter-corporate deposits & fixed deposits
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36. Financial instruments- fair values and Fair value hierarchy
A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following tble shows the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Note Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Investments in unquoted mucual funds (Note - 1) 10 He4 4464 - -
Trade receivables 11 532 332 1,268 1,268
Cash and cash equivalents 12 193 193 132 132
Other financial assets 7 104 104 45 45
Total financial assets 5,293 5,293 1,445 1,445
Borrowings 15 . . 3,150 5,150
Lease Liability 6 304 304 253 253
Trade payable 17 1,033 1,033 432 432
Other financial liailiries L7A 110 110 30 30
Total financial liabilities 1,467 1,467 5,885 5,385

Note - 1: The Level 2 financial instrumnents are measured using NAV in mutual fund statements

37. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, lease liabilities comprises of borrowings and trade payables, The main purpose of these financial liablities is to
finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, and cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a finance team that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk govemance
framework for the Company. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(a) Credit Risk

Credir risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under 2 financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primasily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial mstruments. The maximum
credit exposure associated with the financial assets is equal to the carrying amount. The details of the credit nsk specific to the Company along with relevant mitigation procedures
adopted have been enumerated below:

(i)Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is exposure that the Company has major has major business dealing with few partes to whom sales are made on credit basis and the
contracted consideration is yet to be received, The Company provides for allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other
receivables. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on simplified provision matnx. The
Company has considered an assessment of past history and has taken into account various future forecast conditions for determination of allowance for expected credit loss

Revenue from two custorners amounted to Rs. 3,428 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs. 3,823 lakhs) which individuaily amounts to more than 10% of the total revenue from operations of
the Company,

(ii) Other Financial Assets
The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks. The Company has set counter party limit based on multple factors including
financial positions, credit rating etc. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 is carrying value of each class of financial assers

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the cisk that the Company will encounter difficulty meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are proposed to be settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's financial planning has ensured, sufficient liquidity to meet the liabilities whenever due under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurnng unexpected losses making damages to company's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the marrity profies of financial assets and liabalities,

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Carrying On Upto 1 year 1-3 years  More than 3 Total
amount  demand years contracted
cash flows
Trade payable 1,053 257 795 2 - 1,053
Lease Liabilities 304 - 113 181 70 365
Other financial Liabilities 110 110 - - - 110

Total 1,467 367 908 183 70 1,528
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial kabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2024

Particulars Carrying On Uptolyear 1-3years More than 3 Total
amount demand years contracted
cash flows
Trade payable 432 - 432 - - 432
Lease Labilities 253 - 81 147 81 309
Other financial hiabilities 50 50 - - - 50
Borrowings 5,150 5,150 - - - 5,150
Total 5,885 5,200 513 147 81 5,941

(c) Market risk

The Company's financial instruments are exposed to market rate changes. The Company is exposed to the following significant

market nsks:

« Foreign curtency sk

* Interest ate risk

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Company's exposure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are being
managed and measured.

(i) Foreign currency risk management

Foreiga currency dsk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company’s exposure to the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primaaly to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). The Company is
exposed to foreign exchange nisk majocly on account of for its imports of raw materials, intermediates and traded goods. The fmance team monitor the currency movement and
respond swiftly to marcket situations.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities based on gross exposure at the end of the reporting period is as
under: - NIL

a. Foreign cucrency forward and option contracts outstanding as at the 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024- NIL
b. Net open exposures outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date: -

Liabilities Assets
Asac3l As at 31 As at 3l As at 31
March 2025 March 2024| March 2025  March 2024
USD (in lakhs) 0.68 . 2.08 =
INR R in lakhs) 57 - 179

March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

Impact of X1 strengthening against US Dollar on profit or loss for the year 1.05 0.00

Currency USD impact on:

Impact of X1 weakening against US Dollar on profit or loss for the yeac (1.05)
c. Summary of bedging instruments outstanding at the end of the year designated as cash flow hedges: NIL

(it} Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market mterest rates. The Company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term debt obligations.

The Company draws working capital demand loans, avails cash credit. for meeting its funding requirements. [nterest rates on these borrowings are exposed to change in respective
benchmark rates. The Company manages the interest rate risk by maintaining appropriate mix/portfolio of the borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis - The amount of borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting pediod is Nil. Hence, the company is not significantly exposed to mterest
rate nisk.

(d) Commodity price risks

The Company’s operating activities require the ongoing purchase of raw materials from other countries, it is exposed to commodity risk due to its reliance on international
suppliers for raw matedals, making it vulnerable to fluctuations in global market prices, currency exchange rates and ecopolitical events. The company's effective risk management
strategics are in place to mitigate potential adverse effects on production and profitability.

38. The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit tmil in
tespect of the relevant prior year has not been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

39. During the year, in view of improved presentation, the Company has reassessed presentation of accrued salaries and wages to employees have been reclassified under “Other
financial liabilities” which were earlier included in trade payables amounting to Rs. 110 lakhs as at March 31, 2025 (Rs. 50 lakhs as at March 31, 2024).
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40. As per the provisions of section 149 and 177 of The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), the Company is required to appoint two independent directors and constitute an audit
committee respectively, from the current year. The Company has complied with these requirements subsequent to the year end, including the approvals of related party
teansactions as per the requirements of the Act.

41. Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off any section 248 of Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act 1936.

(iii) The company do not have any charges or sausfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the startory period

(iv) The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Victual Currency during the financial year,

(v) The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall:
(@) dicectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

rovide an rantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
P y gua Y
(vi) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

otherwise) that the company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 2ny manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The company have not any such transaction which is nort recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(ix) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The
periodic teturns filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company.

(x) The Company has the following Core [nvestment Companies in the group:
1. Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
2. Ambadi Investments Limired.
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